
The Regular Meeting of the 

Brian Head Town Council  
Town Hall - 56 North Highway 143  

Brian Head, UT 84719 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 13, 2016 @ 1:00 PM 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER  1:00 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
C.  DISCLOSURES 

D.  PUBLIC INPUT/ REPORTS (Limited to three (3) minutes) Non-Agenda Items 

E. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:  November 8, 2016 Town Council Meeting 

F. AGENDA ITEMS:  

1. ANNUAL AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016.    Wayne Everett, Hafen, Buckner & Everett, will present

the annual audit for the town ending June 30, 2016

2. STEAM ENGINE MEADOWS – PHASE 1C SPECIAL ASSESSMENT AREA REQUEST.
David Whitehead, property owner, will present a petition to create a Special Assessment Area for the Steam
Engine Meadows Subdivision, Phase 1-C area.

3. STEAM ENGINE MEADOWS PHASE 1A & 1B SUBDIVISION ACCEPTANCE.  Shane

Williamson, Public Works Director.  The Council will officially accept Phase 1A and 1B of the Steam Engine
Meadows Subdivision.

4. PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDGB)
AND COMMUNITY IMPACT BOARD (CIB) CAPITAL PROJECTS.  The Council will receive

public comment on a proposed project list for a one year and a 2 to 5 year capital improvement project list for
potential grant funding.  Comments are limited to three minutes and written comments may be submitted to the
Town Clerk no later than noon on December 13, 2016.

5. APPROVAL OF THE CDGB AND CIB CAPITAL PROJECT LIST.  Cecilia Johnson, Town

Treasurer.  The Council will consider approval of the Capital project list for a one year and a 2 to 5 year capital
improvement project list to be submitted to CDBG and CIB for potential grant funding.

6. PUBLIC HEARING FOR AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET.  The Council will

hold a public hearing to receive public comment on proposed amendments to the General Fund budget ending
June 30, 2016.  Comments are limited to three minutes and written comments may be submitted to the Town
Clerk no later than noon on December 13, 2016.  Details of the proposed budget amendment are available at the
town offices during normal business hours.

7. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 TOWN BUDGET.  Cecilia Johnson, Town

Treasurer.  The Council will consider adopting an ordinance amending the fiscal year 2016 town budget.

8. BEARFLAT MEADOW PRESERVE MASTER PLAN RESOLUTION.  Bret Howser, Town

Manager.  The Council will consider a resolution adopting the Bearflat Meadow Preserve Master Plan.

9. UTAH OUTDOOR RECREATION GRANT APPROVAL.  Bret Howser, Town Manager.  The

Council will give the approval for the Utah Outdoor Recreation Grant that the town received.



10. UTAH STATE PARKS AND RECREATION COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT.  Nancy Leigh,

Town Clerk.  The Council will consider an agreement with Utah State Parks and Recreation for partial 
reimbursement for the town’s snowmobile trail grooming for the 2016-2017 winter season.   

11. 2017 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE APPROVAL.  Nancy Leigh, Town Clerk.  The

Council will approve their 2017 meeting schedule. 

G. CLOSED SESSION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL to discuss the character, professional competence, 

or physical or mental health of an individual. 

H. ADJOURNMENT 

Date:   December 9, 2016 

Available to Board Members as per Resolution No. 347 authorizes public bodies, including the Town, to establish written procedures governing the 
calling and holding of electronic meetings at which one or more members of the Council may participate by means of a telephonic or 
telecommunications conference.   In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing auxiliary communications aids and services 
for this meeting should call Brian Head Town Hall @ (435) 677-2029 at least three days in advance of the meeting. 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 

I hereby certify that I have posted copies of this agenda in three public and conspicuous places within the Town Limits of Br ian Head; to wit, Town Hall, 
Post Office and The Mall on this 9

th
 day of December 2016 and have posted such copy on the Utah Meeting Notice Website and have caused a copy of

this notice to be delivered to the Daily Spectrum, a newspaper of general circulation. 

____________________________ 
Nancy Leigh, Town Clerk 



Brian Head Public Safety Council Update 

11/01/2016 

Brian Head Marshal’s Office: 

Winter is in full swing, the resort is open and deputies are off to the races.  We had a busy month with 

diverse incidents.  Deputies have already proven to be ready for this upcoming ski season and are ready 

for whatever is thrown their way.   

Sergeant Dan Guymon was handed a vehicle burglary case that seemed difficult to solve. A car that was 

parked at “Hidden Haven” was burglarized and a wallet was taken from the vehicle.  Sgt. Guymon

jumped right on the case.  The victim was a visitor to the Town and he knew his response would be 

faster than if the County were to take it.  He was able to make quick work of tracking transactions made 

in other surrounding counties, gain video evidence of a suspect, and track him back to a residence in 

Parowan. Sgt. Guymon and Deputy Jared Burton surveyed the home until the suspect returned. They 

were able to make an arrest based on good evidence, follow up and great interview skills.  The victim 

was very appreciative of their response. 

Sergeant Guymon is also working an active case involving a tenant at Timberbrook who took some 

furnishings when they moved from the property.  He is currently interviewing suspects and tracking 

down stolen items. 

We had a couple of burglaries at the Lofts.  Danny Abbott was given the task of chasing this case and 

following up on it.  So far it appears to be more in line of an act of vandalism than an actual burglary.  

Two doors were beat in, but no property has been found stolen at this time.  Deputies canvased many of 

the condo properties throughout town and no further properties were found to be affected.  The case is 

still open and Deputy Abbott is still chasing any and all leads he can turn up. 

Deputy Brad Benson as well as some of the others were very busy keeping up on fire inspections for 

nightly rentals.  A total of 11 new properties were inspected.  Many of them were did not pass our 

minimal requirements and will need to be followed up on and re-inspected.  It is great to be getting so 

many citizens on board and with proper business licenses.  Nancy has done a great job in tracking and 

getting these properties identified and informed of local ordinances. 

Deputy Jared Burton was out of commission for a few weeks due to an ATV accident that occurred 

during his rifle deer hunt.  Deputy Burton suffered from a broken arm and concussion.  He is now back in 

full swing and filling his shifts. 

We have all been very busy assisting each other with our own individually assigned cases and working 

very well as a team.  Many cases take a considerable amount of time due to the fact they usually involve 

people that don’t reside in Brian Head.  Both victims and suspects are usually living in communities 

elsewhere and it us up to us to track them down for interviews and follow up information.  This often 

times means that deputies are having to leave them mountain themselves.  We are working hard to be 

sure and backfill as needed to keep the mountain covered for other emergencies that may arise.  We are 

also utilizing our neighboring agencies to assist and are glad we have such good working relationships 



with them.  Many times we are able to get suspects to return to Brian Head for questioning.  We are 

also conducting phone interviews as much as possible to limit travel and maintain coverage.  I can’t 

express how appreciative I am of our Deputies and their level of professionalism for the Town of Brian 

Head.  They truly have our best interest in mind. 

Deputy Danny Abbott, Sergeant Guymon, and I were able to travel to West Valley this past month and 

pay our respects to one of our fallen officers.  West Valley Police Departments Cody Brotherson was 

killed this month while trying to stop fleeing felons in a stolen car.  Officer Brotherson was struck while 

trying to put out “Stop Sticks” in an effort to slow the vehicle.  He died from his injuries on scene.  The 

car was driven by a 15-year-old, and two 14-year-old passengers.  It was an honor for us to attend this 

service and stand by our brothers in blue.   

 Shifts and Numbers of Incidents
o Day Shift =24

o Swing Shift =12

o Grave Shift = 4

 Total Incidents for November = 40

Types of Incidents 

 Citizen Assists:10

 Medicals: 2

 Fire Calls: 12

 911/Alarms:5

 Vehicle Accidents: 2

 Suspicious: 1

 Theft: 2

 Vehicle Burglary: 1

 Burglary: 1

 Weapon Offense: 1

 Unsecure Premise: 2

 Trespass: 1

 Suspicious: 1



Brian Head Fire Dept: 

Fall is our favorite time to conduct our burning operations for fuel breaks.  A substantial amount of piles 

fuels was burned in the area of the Alpine Creek Trail.  This area is probably looking at one more 

treatment of re-stacking and cutting down the remaining dead and it will be complete.  This fuel 

thinning project is an excellent one in regards to protecting our North boundary from approaching 

wildfire.  It will also prove to make a better experience for those trekking the Alpine Creek Trail.  We 

have already noted an increase in grasses and flowers which will in turn bring in more wildlife.   

Our very own project on Snowshoe and Toboggan are complete.  Piles have been burned and this area is 

already grown in with lots of grasses on its own.  As we were burning in a couple of feet of snow we 

were amazed with how many deer were still in the area and were all picking at vegetation along the 

roadway that would not have been there had we not done this fuels project.   

We are also very pleased with the work we have been able to do along the Town Trail between Fir and 

Aspen.  Although we have some work to complete on this project next spring/summer.  We will be 

cutting down the hazard/dead trees now that we can actually safely get into the area and work.  Many 

of these will have to fall on the highway so a coordination between public works and our fuels crew will 

have to be made for this work to get completed.  We can’t wait to see what becomes of this area in 

regards to wildflowers and grasses now that it has been thinned and cleaned up. 

Training as always has been top notch.  We are still doing multi agency trainings with Parowan and 

Paragonah and are very pleased with the comradery we have with our neighboring fire departments.  

Our last training involved a multi-agency response to a structural fire.  With the use of a smoke machine 

a very realistic atmosphere was created.  We then proceeded to send teams in on rescue and attack 

teams.  These teams were put together with members of each department.  I can’t tell you how pleased 

I am with our ability now to be on the same page.  No matter what agencies members we put together, 

they seemed to work together in an effective safe manner.   

We also had a training course in defensive driving that was instructed by the Utah Local Governments 

Trust.  This is a training I have been trying to get them to come and do for many years.  It is great 

information that I wanted put out to all of our firefighters.  I appreciate Cecilia getting this put together 

and making it happen. 

Our older Ford fire truck was taken to Parowan in an attempt to have it pump tested at a higher GPM.  

Elevation has a serious effect on an engines ability to produce horse power especially in a gas engine.  

With the older truck testing at a lower value over the past few years we thought it would be worth the 

drive.  We did not see a substantial increase, but were able to get 750 GPM out of it which will still 

maintain its status as a structural fire truck therefore giving us credit with our ISO rating.  Age of the 

engine seems to be playing more of a role in its capabilities. 

As a matter of information.  We have been in contact with Landis Fireworks and our New Year’s Eve 

show is ordered and will be put together by our Public Safety Department.  It is usually shot of at about 

6:00 PM right after the Torch Light Parade. 

 

 



Brian Head Public Safety 

Wishing You 

A  

Merry Christmas and a Safe and Happy New Year 

 
 



 















 

1 Officer Cody Brotherson Funeral Service 















 



Brian Head Town 

 Public Works Department Update 

December 13, 2016 

As we have begun to settle into the winter season and focus on providing snow removal, 

it is impressive to reflect on the amount of work the Public Works Department accomplished 

during the unseasonably warm fall weather.  For example, deficient and leaking pipes near 

Decker Springs may have waited until spring to obtain repairs; however, this work is now 

complete.  That said, a particular achievement resulting from the fall efforts comes from the 

infamous Dedicated Snowmaking Line.  Specifically, the completion of this line has brought 

several growing pains in calibrating the new equipment and make minor adjustments as the 

infrastructure integration was executed.  However, the Public Works Department is pleased to 

announce that the efforts have paid off, as we are now able to provide around 1,100 gallons per 

minute to the Resort’s snowmaking pond.  We are excited with this ability, which is nearly 

double the volume from last year, as it has been a huge part of the Resort’s opening this season! 

Next, with the kick-off of snow removal season, we have experienced a few growing 

pains based on training new operators and dealing with equipment breakdowns.  However, at this 

point, we have mitigated the errors, and the equipment is running well, giving us a better arsenal 

to fight the storms as they develop.  Also, Chris, Jesse, and Marty have completed the snow ramp 

for the snowmobile trail in front of the Mall.  I am happy to report that overall, despite a couple 

of hiccups, the newly remodeled crew has fared well and I am pleased with their progress as a 

unit. 



Finally, I recently had the opportunity to take the State of Utah Drinking Water exam, 

with which I passed!  Consequently, I am now certified at a level above that of the Town’s 

water system.  Moving forward, we are scheduled to attend the annual Rural Water Conference 

later this winter, at which our new employees will begin testing for both the Drinking Water 

and Wastewater certifications. 

November PW Statistics: 

Summary:  During November 2016, the majority of our call-outs pertained to snow removal, 
with a close second coming from water system issues.  That said, the water system issues were 
singled to SCADA resets and pump resets.  Finally, with no sewer calls, the single solid waste 
call-out was from one overflowing dumpster and one recycling dumpster, of which we are 
looking for ways to assure these are taken care of during our normal scheduled pick-ups. 

12

6
5

0 1

TOTAL SNOW REMOVAL WATER SEWER SOLID WASTE

November 2016 PW Call-outs





November in Pictures: 





Town Council 
Staff Report 

 
 

 
Subject:  Audit Report – FY 2016 Budget                                 
Author:  Cecilia Johnson, Town Treasurer 
Department:  Administration 
Date:   December 13, 2016 
Type of Item: Informational 
 

SUMMARY; 
Wayne Everett, Brian Head Town Auditor, will present his annual audit report for FY 
ending June 30, 2016. 
   
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  
Not applicable. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This is an annual event and the Auditor will update the Town Council on the financial 
status of the Town. 
   
ANALYSIS: 
Not applicable.  
 
DEPARTMENT REVIEW:  
The staff has reviewed the audit. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  
It is not anticipated that the Town will have any significant financial implications from the 
FY 2016 audit.   
 
BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
Not applicable. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
This is an informational item only and requires no action from the Council.  Please feel 
free to ask Mr. Everett any questions you may have.  
 
PROPSED MOTION:   
Not applicable, since this is an informational item only. 
 





































































































































Town Council 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
Subject: Steam Engine Meadow Phase 1C SAA Petition 
Author:  Bret Howser 
Department:  Administration 
Date:  12-13-16 
Type of Item: Legislative 
 
SUMMARY: 

Council will consider a petition submitted by property owners in Steam Engine Meadows 
Phase 1C requesting creation of a Special Assessment Area. 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  

Council was approached by the Steam Engine HOA in January 2015 to determine the 
Town’s interest in moving forward with an SAA. The Council responded favorably. 
 
BACKGROUND:  

The attached policy for Special Assessment Areas (SAA) was adopted by the Town 
Council in 2009 and lays out the process by which the Town considers petitions for 
SAAs. The policy states that a neighborhood may petition the Town to create an SAA. If 
the petition shows support representing greater than 50% of the lineal frontage of 
properties adjacent to the proposed improvements, the Town may consider the petition. 
According to the policy, the Town will effectuate the desired improvements within 18 
months of accepting the petition. The policy is unclear on whether the Town Council has 
latitude to reject the creation of an SAA despite a successful petition. Staff is consulting 
with the Town Attorney on state statute regarding SAAs, and will have clarification on 
this point during the Council meeting on December 13.  
 
David Whitehead, a property owner in Steam Engine Meadows Phase 1C, solicited 
signatures for a petition to create an SAA in Steam Engine Meadows Phase 1C (see 
attached Plat Map, the green line bounds the proposed SAA) for the purpose of 
installing natural gas service lines, underground power service lines, completing existing 
water and sewer lines, and paving platted roads in the subdivision. 100% of property 
owners (excluding the Town, which owns seven properties in the subdivision) signed 
the petition. The completed petition is attached. 
 
ANALYSIS:   

 
If the SAA is created, it is anticipated that the 
infrastructure projects will cost just shy of $600,000. 

Estimated Construction Costs

Water $25,000

Sewer $25,000

Streets $280,000

Gas $61,000

Power $189,000

Total Construction Cost $580,000



Typically, SAAs employ debt financing to spread the cost 
over a period of time, and the funds to defray the annual 
debt service obligation incurred by the Town are recovered 
through a special property tax assessment levied only on 
the properties in the SAA. The table at left shows what 
such a financing strategy may look like. 
 

The Town and property owners may expect a property tax 
assessment similar to those shown in the table below as a result of debt financing 
through the SAA. 
 
Staff is told that property owners who 
participated in the petition indicated that 
they were comfortable with a total cost of 
$30,000 - $40,000 per property, and the 
average assessment on properties is 
projected to be in that range. There may 
be various ways to distribute this cost, 
however it is typically distributed based 
on assessed values. Staff will have to 
explore state statute in order to 
determine the flexibility the Town might 
have in how the costs are distributed. Also, some property owners may have an interest 
in paying the total amount up front in order to save on bonding interest costs. This may 
also be possible by simply reducing the size of the bond issuance and adding the 
upfront payment of these property owners to the construction fund, then instructing the 
County not to assess those property owners moving forward. However, once the bonds 
are issued the interest obligation is set until the call date (usually 10 years), and the 
Town would require property owners to pay their portion of the principal and interest, 
even if they choose at that point to pay early. 
 
The Town has approved multiple SAAs in the past, and has had financial issues arise 
as a result of failed SAAs. In 2000, the Town entered into an agreement with Reliance 
Capital Partners for the development of Steam Engine Meadows using a special 
assessment debt financing and created a Special Improvement District (SID, now 
referred to as SAA).  After Reliance went bankrupt, Griffin Holdings gained ownership of 
the remaining properties in Steam Engine. The Town entered an agreement with Griffin 
in 2007 requiring them to finish the improvements and provide security. Eventually, 
Griffin also went bankrupt leaving the Town to foot the bill for a portion of the bond 
repayment. The Town acquired eight properties in the subdivision (seven of which are in 
the newly proposed SAA) which had been put up by Griffin as security. The Town has 
yet to be able to monetize these properties.  
 
This example of a failed SAA, along with the Bristlecone development, involved a 
developer creating the SAA with hopes of paying the assessments when properties 
were sold. When those hopes didn’t materialize due to the recession, the developers 
went bankrupt and left debt obligations to the Town. This situation is very different in 

Bond Terms

Principal $580,000

Financing Costs $20,000

Interest 5%

Term (yrs) 15

Annual Debt Service $56,900

Total Financed Cost $853,500

Tax Impact

Number of Properties 22

Total Assessed Value $1,419,250

Avg Tax Increase per Property (Total) $38,800

Avg Tax Increase per Property (Annual) $2,600

SAA Mill Levy .0401

Annual Tax Increase per $10,000 AV $401

Number of Town-Owned Properties 7

AV of Town-Owned Properties $470,000

Annaul SAA Tax for Town Properties $18,800



that it’s not a single developer creating the SAA. There are several property owners who 
are not necessarily relying on selling the property in order to meet the assessment 
obligation. It’s a more traditional SAA model and one that is less risky for the Town.  
 
Part of the reason the Town hasn’t been able to sell its properties in Phase 1C is 
because they lack utility improvements, which problem this SAA would seek to resolve. 
As in concerns the Town-owned properties, this is an investment opportunity for the 
Town. The Town would pay for its share of the improvements, perhaps as much as 
$280,000 over 15 years, but it would have seven marketable properties with enhanced 
value which it could sell over that period to offset the assessments and recover costs 
from 10 years ago. Again, this is not without risk, but it does have the potential to 
financially benefit the Town directly. 
 
Staff will have more detailed information on the process going forward to present during 
the December 13 meeting. 
 
DEPARTMENT REVIEW:   

Administration 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:   

Implementing the SAA would commit the Town to covering its portion of the 
assessment, perhaps up to $280,000 over 15 years. However, this would make the 
Town’s properties in Phase 1C more marketable and may encourage building in that 
phase, resulting in increased property tax revenues for the Town. 
 
BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:   

N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    

Council should consider a petition submitted by property owners in Steam Engine 
Meadows Phase 1C requesting creation of a Special Assessment Area. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A – Brian Head Town SAA Policy 
B – Proposed SAA Map 
C – Petition for SAA 



Adopted 2009  1 

 

Brian Head Town 

Public Works Department 

Special Assessment Areas 

 
What is a Special Assessment Area? 

A Special Assessment Area (SAA) is an area legally defined through ordinance by the Town 

Council for the installation of public way improvements. Public way improvements may involve 

the installation of curb and gutter, sidewalks, and drive approaches where such improvements 
have not previously existed. Improvements may also include roadway and drainage 

improvements, accessibility ramp construction, and installation of culinary water and sanitary 

sewer systems. All SAA improvements must extent from existing similar Town owned and 

approved facilities. SAA projects upgrade the community through the elimination of drainage 
problems, pedestrian safety concerns, year round access, fire protection and unsightly conditions 

in the public way. 

What does it Cost? 
Improvement costs for Water Systems are between $75 to $90 per linear foot. Sewer System 

Improvements are $50 to $60 per linear foot and Gravel Road construction to Town Standards is 

$35 to $45 per linear foot (2009 estimated costs). These figures are provided for property owner cost 
estimating only; actual costs may vary based on specific construction needs and bids received 

from contractors when the Special Assessment Area is created.   

 
At the completion of the project when actual costs are determined, a special tax assessment is 

placed on all abutting properties according to the proportional benefit received from the public 

way improvements. Property owners can pay the assessment in one lump sum or through equal 
annual installments. The installment plan for Water, Sewer and Street Extension SAA’s are 

generally spread over ten years. Interest charges are accrued on the unpaid balance at a rate 

established by the Town Treasurer. This interest rate is set when the Town obtains a municipal 

bond for the project. Favorable interest rates have always been obtained because of the excellent 
bond rating held by Brian Head Town. Property owners who p[ay the entire assessment within 

fifteen days of the initial notification avoid any interest charges. 

How do I get an SAA in my neighborhood? 
Property owners can petition the Town for the installation or reconstruction of public way 

improvements through a Special Assessment Area. Those signing the petition must be the owners 

of the properties adjacent to the requested public way improvements, not residents that are renting 
or leasing the property. A petition form is provided at the end of this information sheet for your 

use in collecting signatures and determining support of the proposed project. Apparent support of 

the project, as indicated by those signing the petition, must represent greater than 50% of the total 
lineal front footage of the proposed public way improvements for the Town to consider creation 

of a Special Assessment Area.  

How long does it take? 
SAA petitions are given immediate attention. The time frame from receipt of a petition to 

construction is approximately 18 months (or sooner), pending the availability of capital 

improvement funding. Activities that occur during this time frame include public meetings to 
address property owner concerns, defining the project scope, designing the project, preparing cost 

estimates, determining the availability of funding, and complying with all SAA bonding 

requirements. 
 



Bret
Polygonal Line







































Town Council 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
Subject: Steam Engine Subdivision – Phases 1A & 1B   
Author:  Shane Williamson 
Department:  Public Works 
Date:  December 13, 2016 
Type of Item: Legislative  
 
SUMMARY: 
The Council should consider approving Phases 1A and 1B of the Steam Engine 
Subdivision based on substantial completion of the subdivision and other requirements 
set forth by staff and the Council in 2007. 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  
Previously, the Council has been waiting on staff to confirm completion of the punch list 
items, and for the developer to request approval.   
 
BACKGROUND:  
On September 13, 2007, Stantec Engineering issued a punch list for eleven items found 
to be unsatisfactory or incomplete in the subdivision.  The punch list was given to both 
Town staff and the developer as criteria needing attention before approval would be 
granted.  On October 21, 2008, Tom Stratton issued an email to the Town Manager, the 
Engineer, and the developer indicating he had concluded a final walk-through inspecting 
the items listed in Stantec’s punch list.  The letter declared that all issues had been 
addressed and completed, which led to Tom’s recommendation to accept the 
road/subdivision. 
 
ANALYSIS:   
In a review of the letter from Stantec Engineering and the letter recommending 
acceptance from Tom Stratton, staff cannot see a reason not to approve and accept the 
subdivision.  For example, the Town holds documentation implying completion of the 
work, and it is hard to inspect the infrastructure eight years later and differentiate what 
was defective in 2007 and what is defective based on normal wear and tear.  Also, the 
Town has been maintaining the infrastructure, like fixing water leaks, 
cleaning/inspection the sewer, and plowing/maintain the streets.  Ultimately, the 
maintenance expressed on the subdivision’s infrastructure was critical to the Town’s 
overall operation, as neglecting water or sewer leaks would have impacted the overall 
performance of the systems in their entirety.  Therefore, in a sense, and at least on the 
Public Works level, the Town has already accepted the infrastructure, as is. 



 
DEPARTMENT REVIEW: 
Public Works and Administration   
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
The proposed acceptance of the Steam Engine Subdivision does not place more 
burden on the Town’s operations budget.  For example, since we currently operate and 
maintain the infrastructure in the subdivision, the costs have already been adopted into 
the annual budgets for expenses and revenue.  For example, the lane miles from the 
Steam Engine streets are included in the number we use to request and receive Class 
B & C Road Funds from the state.  Also, we include the entire infrastructure in our 
capital facilities plans, like the Streets Master Plan, The Streets Preservation Plan, 
sewer preventative maintenance plan, and the water system’s operating plan. 
 
BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:   
n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider accepting and approving the Steam Engine Subdivision Phases 1A and 1B. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:   
I move to accept the Steam Engine Subdivision Phases 1A and 1B. 











                                         
                                               

Subject: Public Hearing on CDBG/CIB Capital Projects Lists – 1) one year 

plan; and 2) two to five year plan 

Author:  Cecilia Johnson, Town Treasurer 

Department:  Administration 

Date:   December 13, 2016 

Type of Item: Legislative 

 

SUMMARY 

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Board and Community Impact 
Board (CIB) are two sources of grants and low-interest loans for government entities.  
Each year cities and towns are required to submit 1) one year; and 2) two to five year 
Capital Improvements Lists to the Boards.  The lists need to include anticipated funding 
sources for the Town’s projects.  A project MUST be included in the Capital 
Improvements lists to be eligible to apply for either CDBG or CIB funding.  
 
The Council will hold a public hearing to receive input from its citizens.   

 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION  

Not applicable. 
 

BACKGROUND 

In order for Brian Head Town to apply for grants/loans through CDBG and CIB for 
calendar year 2017, the Capital Improvement Lists need to be submitted to CDBG by 
January, 2017.   
 

ANALYSIS 

CDBG and CIB grants and loans are excellent funding sources for local governments.  
This is a top choice for a way to receive help with important community infrastructure 
projects.   
 

DEPARTMENT REVIEW 

Staff has reviewed the CDBG and CIB process and holding the public hearing is the first 
step of applying for funding for potential projects.  
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Not applicable. 

Town Council 

Staff Report 

 



  

BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

Not applicable. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the public hearing be held, as required by CDBG and CIB, to receive 
input from the public regarding Capital Projects for Brian Head Town. 
 

PROPOSED MOTION 

Since this is a public hearing only no motion is necessary. 

    
 

 

 

 



                                         
                                               

Subject: Approval of CDBG/CIB Capital Projects Lists – 1) one year plan; 
and 2) two to five year plan 

Author:  Cecilia Johnson, Town Treasurer 
Department:  Administration 
Date:   December 13, 2016 
Type of Item: Legislative 
 
SUMMARY 
The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Board and Community Impact 
Board (CIB) are two sources of grants and low-interest loans for government entities.  
Each year cities and towns are required to submit a 1) one year; and 2) two to five year 
Capital Improvements List to the Boards.  The lists need to include anticipated funding 
sources for the Town’s projects.  A project MUST be included in the Capital 
Improvements lists to be eligible to apply for either CDBG or CIB funding.  
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION  
Not applicable. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Brian Head Town held a public hearing prior to this calendar item (as required by the 
CDBG and CIB process).  In order for Brian Head Town to apply for grants/loans 
through CDBG and CIB for calendar year 2017, the Capital Improvement Lists need to 
be submitted to CDBG by January, 2017.  These lists need to be prioritized as high, 
medium, or low importance.  Also, as 1, 2, 3 etc. in each category. 
 
ANALYSIS 
CDBG and CIB grants and loans are excellent funding sources for local governments.  
This is a top choice for a way to receive help with important community infrastructure 
projects.  Brian Head Town already qualifies as a low to moderate income (LMI) 
community, according to the last census.  80% of CDBG funding goes towards LMI 
communities.   
 
DEPARTMENT REVIEW 
Staff has reviewed the CDBG and CIB Capital Improvements Lists and feel they contain 
proper projects for our Town. 
 

Town Council 
Staff Report 

 



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
At this point, there are no financial implications since the Council is just approving the 
Capital Improvements Lists.  
  
BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
Not applicable. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the CDBG and CIB Capital Improvements Lists be approved as 
submitted.  
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
“I hereby move to approve Brian Head Town’s one-year and two to five year capital 
improvements lists as submitted.”    
 

 



L
oc

al
 P

ri
or

ity

Project Description Estimated 
Total Cost

Funding 
Source or 

Type

Funding 
Amount

Year to 
Apply

H-1 Storm Drain Master Plan 42,500$       CIB/Town 42,500$      2017

H-2 Pumper Truck 450,000$     CDBG/Town 450,000$    2017

H-3 First Responder/Extrication Vehicle 
(Equipped)

115,000$     Town 115,000$    2017

H-4 Dry Canyon & Spring Overflow Meters 35,000$       CIB/Town 35,000$      2017

H-5 Hunter Ridge Street Improvements 200,000$     STIP/Town 200,000$    2017

M-1 Paved Pedestrian Pathway 238,000$     
Outdoor Rec 

Grant/ 
RDA/UDOT 

238,000$    2017

L-1 Manzanita Trail Improvements/Signage 35,000$       Town/Grant 35,000$      2017

L-2 Affordable Housing Plan 25,000$       CDBG 25,000$      2017

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS LIST 2017
ONE YEAR STRATEGY

Prioritize projects as (H)igh, (M)edium, or (L)ow.  List highest priorities at the top with the others 
in corresponding order for each category.  LIST ALL PROJECTS AND FUNDING SOURCES.

Jurisdiction Name:  Brian Head Town



L
oc

al
 P

ri
or

ity

Project Description Estimated 
Total Cost

Funding 
Source or Type

Funding 
Amount

Year to 
Apply

H-1 Public Works Maintenance Facility 1,000,000$  CIB/USDA/Town 1,000,000$   2021

H-2 Ladder Truck 1,000,000$  CIB/Town 1,000,000$   2021

H-3 Steam Engine Street Improvements 200,000$     STIP/Town 200,000$      2018-2019

H-4 Distrtibution Line (MG Tank to Salt Pile 
Tank)

700,000$     Town 700,000$      2018-2019

H-5 Parowan Canyon Trunk Line 864,000$     Town 864,000$      2020

H-6 Rue Jolley - Aoki Michi Tie-in 250,000$     Town 250,000$      2020

H-7 Sewer Manhole Repair 300,000$     Town 300,000$      2019

M-1 Bristlecone Park Improvements - Phase II 150,000$     Town/Grant 150,000$      2018-19

M-2 Bear Flat Trailhead 30,000$       Town/Grant 30,000$        2018

M-3 Alpine Creek Trailhead 30,000$       Town/Grant 30,000$        2018

M-4 Village Way Sewer Line 525,000$     RDA/Town 525,000$      2018-2019

L-1 12-inch Line from .5 MG Tank to 
Woodbridge

120,000$     Town 120,000$      2021

L-2 Aspen Drive Waterline 550,000$     Town 550,000$      2024

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS LIST 2018-2021
TWO-FIVE YEAR STRATEGY

Prioritize projects as (H)igh, (M)edium, or (L)ow.  List highest priorities at the top with the others in 
corresponding order for each category.  LIST ALL PROJECTS AND FUNDING SOURCES.

Jurisdiction Name:  Brian Head Town



L
oc

al
 P

ri
or

ity

Project Description Estimated 
Total Cost

Funding 
Source or 

Type

Funding 
Amount

Year to 
Apply

H-1 Bristlecone Park Improvements 80,000$       CIB/Town 80,000$      2016

H-2 Pumper Truck 275,000$     CIB/Town 275,000$    2016

H-3 Storm Sewer Master Plan 40,000$       CIB/Town 40,000$      2016

H-4 Navajo Trail Improvements/Signage 25,000$       Town/Grant 25,000$      2016

H-5 Phone Network 20,000$       Town/Grant 20,000$      2016

H-6 Affordable Housing Plan 25,000$       CDBG 25,000$      2016

H-7 New AED's 3,000$         Town/Grant 30,000$      2016

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS LIST 2016
ONE YEAR STRATEGY

Prioritize projects as (H)igh, (M)edium, or (L)ow.  List highest priorities at the top with the others 
in corresponding order for each category.  LIST ALL PROJECTS AND FUNDING SOURCES.

Jurisdiction Name:  Brian Head Town



L
oc

al
 P

ri
or

ity

Project Description Estimated 
Total Cost

Funding 
Source or 

Type

Funding 
Amount

Year to 
Apply

H-1 Ridgeview Street Improvements Phase I 280,000$     CIB/Town 280,000$      2017

H-2 Public Works Maintenance Facility 1,000,000$  CIB/USDA/Town 1,000,000$   2020

M-1 Pond Parking/Restroom 150,000$     Town/Grant 150,000$      2018-19

M-2 Hunter Ridge Street Improvements Phase I 200,000$     CIB/Town 200,000$      2018

M-3 Bear Flat Trailhead 30,000$       Town/Grant 30,000$        2017-18

M-4 Alpine Creek Trailhead 30,000$       Town/Grant 30,000$        2017-18

M-5 First Responder Vehicle 40,000$       CIB/Town 40,000$        2018-19

M-6 Ladder Truck 1,000,000$  CIB/Town 1,000,000$   2017-18

M-7 Steam Engine Street Improvements 200,000$     CIB/Town 200,000$      2019

M-8 Village Way Sewer Line 525,000$     CIB/Town 525,000$      2017

M-9 Manhole Repair 300,000$     CIB/Town 300,000$      2019

M-10 Town Hall/Council Chambers Remodel 25,000$       Town/Grant 25,000$        2017-20

L-1 Extrication Equipment 25,000$       Town/Grant 25,000$        2017-18

L-2 Distrtibution Line (MG Tank to Salt Pile 
Tank)

700,000$     CIB/USDA/To
wn 700,000$      2020

L-3 Parowan Canyon Trunk Line 864,000$     CIB/USDA/Town 864,000$      2020

L-4 Public Safety Fitness Equipment 20,000$       Town/Grant 20,000$        2017-20

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS LIST 2017-2021
TWO-FIVE YEAR STRATEGY

Prioritize projects as (H)igh, (M)edium, or (L)ow.  List highest priorities at the top with the others in 
corresponding order for each category.  LIST ALL PROJECTS AND FUNDING SOURCES.

Jurisdiction Name:  Brian Head Town



L
oc

al
 P

ri
or

ity

Project Description Estimated 
Total Cost

Funding 
Source or 

Type

Funding 
Amount

Year to 
Apply

H1 Wastewater Treatment Plant 4,000,000$  USDA/Town 4,000,000$ 2015

H2 Trails System Master Plan 50,000$       PCIFB/USPR 50,000$      2015

H3 Public Works Maintenance Facility 1,000,000$  PCIFB/USDA 1,000,000$ 2015

M1 Village Way Sewer Line Repairs 520,000$     USDA/Town 520,000$    2015

M2 First Responder Vehicle Replacement 35,000$       PCIFB/Town 35,000$      2015

M3 Aerial Fire Truck 1,000,000$  PCIFB/Town 1,000,000$ 2015

L1 Street Master Plan (continued from 2014) ** 14,000$       PCIFB/Town 14,000$      2015

L2 Pumper Truck Replacement 325,000$     PCIFB/Town 325,000$    2015

L3 Extrication Equipment Replacement 20,000$       PCIFB/Town 20,000$      2015

ONE YEAR STRATEGY
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS LIST 2015

Prioritize projects as (H)igh, (M)edium, or (L)ow.  List highest priorities at the top with the others 
in corresponding order for each category.  LIST ALL PROJECTS AND FUNDING SOURCES.

Jurisdiction Name:  Brian Head Town

** The Rural Planning Group (Mike Hansen) will be meeting with Brian Head Town on this project on Friday, 
January 9, 2015.  Even though funding for this project was denied by CIB last year (2014), the Rural Planning 
Group offered its services to assist Brian Head Town in preparing a Street Master Plan. The $14,000 listed 
includes $7,000 for Engineering Services and a $7,000 match from the Town. 



L
oc

al
 P

ri
or

ity

Project Description Estimated 
Total Cost

Funding 
Source or 

Type

Funding 
Amount

Year to 
Apply

H4 Dedicated Line from Town Hall to Mammoth Tank 358,000$     USDA/Town 358,000$      2016

H5 Parowan Canyon Sewer Trunk Line (Phase I) 864,000$     USDA/Town 864,000$      2017

M4 Water Distribution Line from 1 MG Tank to Salt 
Pile Tank and Pump Station

694,000$     USDA/Town 694,000$      2018

M5 Brian Head Town Sewer Manhole Repairs 293,000$     USDA/Town 293,000$      2018

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS LIST 2016-2019
TWO-FIVE YEAR STRATEGY

Prioritize projects as (H)igh, (M)edium, or (L)ow.  List highest priorities at the top with the others in 
corresponding order for each category.  LIST ALL PROJECTS AND FUNDING SOURCES.

Jurisdiction Name:  Brian Head Town



1 
 

                                                   
 
Subject: Public Hearing and Ordinance Amending FY 2017 Brian Head 

General Fund Budget   
Author:  Cecilia Johnson, Town Treasurer/ Nancy Leigh, Town Clerk 
Department:  Administration 
Date:  December 13, 2016 
Type of Item: Legislative 
 
SUMMARY 
The Council will hold a public hearing to receive comment on proposed budget 
amendments for fiscal year 2017.  Once the public hearing is closed, the Council will 
consider an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2017 budget.   
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION  
The Town Council adopted all fiscal year 2017 budgets at its meeting of June 14, 2016. 
  
BACKGROUND 
1)  Brian Head Town has applied for, and been awarded, a grant through the 
Community Improvement Board (CIB) program.  The Town is required to contribute a 
match with a 50/50 split.  The amount requested was $55,000.  The grant portion 
awarded to the Town was $27,500.  Staff is currently preparing an RFP for engineering 
services and we'll have bids ready for the February CIB meeting where the formal 
award of funds will happen. 
 
2)  Council met on Thursday, December 8, 2016 and agreed to modify the shuttle routes 
resulting in an increase of approximately $20,000.  Staff has priced out the additional 
bus at $23,500 with another $500 for modifying the signage.  A budget increase of 
$25,000 is needed.  The funding will come from Fund Balance (savings) this fiscal year 
but may come from the $15,000 set aside for the summer shuttle services in future 
years.   
    
ANALYSIS 
1)  A storm drain plan has been on the Town’s Capital Projects list for several years.  It 
is a much needed infrastructure upgrade.  The budget adjustments requested are all 
from the General Fund.  The revenues will come from the grant and the fund balance 
lines.  The fund balance is $671,085 (according to the FY 2016 financial records).  The 
expenditure will come from the Street Department Budget.  
 

Town Council 
Staff Report 

 



2 
 

2)  With the change in the shuttle services, there is an increase in the cost.  Staff is 
recommending budget adjustments for FY 2017 as follows: 
 
General Ledger Account #/Name     Adjusted amount        Adjusted Balance of that  

               Line Item 
 
10 – 3341 – General Government 
State Grant      $27,500      $97,000 
 
10 – 3890 – Fund Balance    $27,500      $27,500 
 
10 – 4410.310 – Professional and 
Technical Services (Streets)   $55,000      $89,000 
 
10-4140-485 - Transportation   $24,000    $175,500 
 
10 – 3890 – Fund Balance    $24,000      $51,500 
 
DEPARTMENT REVIEW 
Staff has reviewed the amendments to the general fund budget and feel they are in 
compliance with budget requirements. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
The budget will still balance to zero (as required).  The Town will be taking $27,500 from  
the general fund’s fund balance for the Storm Drain Plan and $24,000 for the 
transportation Services. 
   
BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
Not applicable 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Ordinance No. 16-008 amending FY 2017 general fund budget be 
adopted as presented. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
“I move to adopt Ordinance No. 16-008, an ordinance amending the FY 2017 general 
fund budget for Brian Head Town as presented.”  
 



DRAFT 

Ordinance No _______ 

 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE  NO. _____ 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2017 BUDGET OF FUNDS 
AND ACCOUNTS ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 FOR THE TOWN OF BRIAN HEAD, 
UTAH.   
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the Uniform Fiscal Procedures Act for Utah 
Towns, Brian Head Town, Utah,  has amended its budget for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2017; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Utah State law, a public hearing was held on 
December 9, 2016 on the amended budget and comments received relating thereto; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF BRIAN 
HEAD, STATE OF UTAH: 
 
ADOPTION:  The Fiscal Year 2016-2017 budget hereby be amended, including all funds 
and accounts as shown in the budget format attached and dated December 9, 2016 
(See Attachment “A”).   
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF BRIAN HEAD, STATE 
OF UTAH on this _____day of December 2016 
 
VOTING:    
  Mayor H.C. Deutschlander   Aye____ Nay____ 
  Council Member Clayton Calloway  Aye____ Nay____ 
  Council Member Reece Wilson  Aye____ Nay____ 
  Council Member Larry Freeberg    Aye____ Nay____ 
  Council Member David Bourne  Aye____ Nay____ 
 
 
      BRIAN HEAD TOWN 
 
 
    By: ________________________________ 
     H.C. Deutschlander, Mayor    
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Nancy Leigh, Town Clerk     (SEAL) 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF PASSAGE AND POSTING 
 

I hereby certify that the above Ordinance is a true and accurate copy, including all attachments, of the Ordinance passed 
by the Town Council on the ____ day of December, 2016, and have posted a complete copy of the ordinance in three 
conspicuous places within the Town of Brian Head, to-wit: Town Hall, Post Office and the Mall. 
 
_______________________________ 
Nancy Leigh, Town Clerk 



DRAFT 

Ordinance No _______ 

 
 

ATTACHEMENT “A” 
2016-2017BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS  

 
 

General Ledger Account #/Name     Adjusted amount        Adjusted 
Balance of that  

               Line Item 
 
10 – 3341 – General Government 
State Grant      $27,500      $97,000 
 
10 – 3890 – Fund Balance    $27,500      $27,500 
 
10 – 4410.310 – Professional and 
Technical Services (Streets)   $55,000      $89,000 
 
10-4140-485 - Transportation   $24,000      $175,500 
 
10 – 3890 – Fund Balance    $24,000      $51,500 

 



Town Council 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
Subject:  Meadow Preserve Master Plan 
Author:   Bret Howser 
Department:   Administration 
Date:  December 13, 2016 
Type of Item:  Action - Resolution 
 
SUMMARY: 

Council should adopt the proposed Bear Flat Meadow Preserve Master Plan by 
resolution. 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  

On June 14, 2016, Council reviewed the Meadow Committee’s proposed master plan 
detailing potential limited development in the Meadow.  
 
BACKGROUND:  

During the August 11, 2015 Town Council meeting, a public hearing was held to receive 
the public’s input on whether the town should permanently preserve the Town Meadow; 
preserve it for now but leave in the Council’s hand; or to allow commercial development 
to happen. Approximately 2,000 surveys were sent out asking the public for their 
opinion with the following result: 

 44% of the public who responded would like the meadow permanently preserve. 
 30% of the public would like the meadow preserved for now, but not on a 

permanent basis. 
 21% of the public would like to see commercial development happen in the 

meadow. 
 5% of the public did not have an opinion. 

 
Based on the public’s input, Council directed staff to create a committee to develop a 
plan which would identify what activities/restrictions would be allowed or prohibited in 
the Town Meadow. 
 
On August 25, 2015, the Town Council created a committee with the purpose to review 
options for limited development in the town meadow and develop a Meadow master 
plan which would serve as the basis for a conservation easement. These types of 
committee are known as Ad Hoc committees or Special committee whose purpose is to 
research/investigate and carry out the directives of the Council and/or Town Manager 
for a particular question and/or project. After the issue has been addressed, then the 
committee will dissolve. 



Members were appointed to the Meadow Committee on September 9, 2015, including
Reece Wilson, Shaun Kelly, Linda Ames, Mike Pisacretta, Jeff Morgan, and John
Grissinger. The committee met several times in the fall of 2015 and the spring of 2016.

On June 14, 2016, Council reviewed and discussed the committee’s proposed Bear Flat 
Meadow Master Plan, suggesting a few small changes and directing staff to bring back
the document to be adopted by resolution. On July 12, 2016, the Council considered the
revised plan for adoption by resolution. A motion to adopt the resolution failed.

ANALYSIS: 

One of the primary concerns the Council and some members of the community had with
the previously proposed Master Plan is that it included a potentially expensive
boardwalk trail through the Meadow. In an effort to bring closure to the issue of Meadow
preservation, staff has revised the Plan to remove all references to the boardwalk trail.
The newly proposed Master Plan is attached for Council’s consideration.

DEPARTMENT REVIEW: 

Administration

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Adoption of the plan would commit the Town to eventually finding a way to finance the
proposed improvements. A very (very) rough estimate of the improvements would be
between $50,000 and $100,000. Staff would look for grant funding where possible.

BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  

The Meadow Committee forwards a positive recommendation for this plan.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Council should adopt the proposed Bear Flat Meadow Preserve Master Plan by
resolution.

PROPOSED MOTION:  

I move to adopt resolution No. 458 approving the Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan.



DRAFT 

Resolution No.____ 

BRIAN HEAD TOWN 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A MASTER PLAN FOR THE BEAR FLAT MEADOW 
PRESERVE LOCATED ADJACENT TO HIGHWAY 143 AND STEAM ENGINE DRIVE. 

WHEREAS, the Town Council identified strategies and goals in an effort to preserve the 
meadow located along highway 143 and Steam Engine Drive as a focal point for the 
guests and residents of Brian Head, Utah; and    

WHEREAS, the Council held a public hearing to receive the public’s comment on the 
future vision of the meadow and the majority of comments received encouraged the 
town to preserve the meadow for future generations with little or no development within 
the meadow; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council established a Meadow Committee consisting of local 

residents and business owners with the goal of making a recommendation to the 
Council on the preservation of the meadow.  The committee directed staff to draft a 
comprehensive master plan with the intent of preserving the meadow along with naming 
the meadow “Bear Flat Meadow Preserve”.   

NOW THEREFORE be it resolved by the Brian Head Town Council of Brian Head, Iron 

County, State of Utah, the following attachment “A” Bear Flat Meadow Preserve Master 
Plan is hereby adopted:   

DATED this ______ day of December, 2016 

VOTE: 
Mayor H.C. Deutschlander  Aye____ Nay____ 
Council Member Larry Freeberg  Aye____ Nay____ 
Council Member Clayton Calloway Aye____ Nay____ 
Council Member Reece Wilson Ay____ Nay____ 
Council Member David Bourne  Aye____ Nay____ 

BRIAN HEAD TOWN 

____________________________________ 
H. C. Deutschlander, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Nancy Leigh, Town Clerk   (SEAL) 



. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .

. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .

BEAR FLAT 

MEADOW PRESERVE 

MASTER PLAN 
Draft – December 2016 



 

 

 

 



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS & SIGNATURES 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | i | Draft 

Thanks to Brian Head Town’s Meadow Committee: 

• Reece Wilson, Committee Chair 

• Linda Ames, Town Resident 

• Shaun Kelly, Brian Head Planning Commission 

• Jeff Morgan, Town Resident 

• Michael Pisacretta, Business Owner 

 

TOWN COUNCIL AFFIRMATION 

 

___________________________________________________________________ 

H.C. “Dutch” Deutschlander, Mayor Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________ 

Clayton Calloway, Town Council Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________ 

Larry Freeberg, Town Council Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________ 

David Bourne, Town Council  Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________ 

Reece Wilson, Town Council    Date 

 



 

 

 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS & SIGNATURES ................................................................................................ i 

 

1. INTRODUCTION................................................................................................................1 

History of Bear Flat Meadow ......................................................................................1 

Description of Property  ..............................................................................................3 

Need for a Meadow Preserve .....................................................................................3 

 

2. VISION & GOALS ..............................................................................................................5 

Meadow Vision ...........................................................................................................5 

Master Plan Goals .......................................................................................................5 

 

3. MASTER PLAN OVERVIEW ................................................................................................6 

 

4. RESOURCE MANAGEMENT ................................................................................................8 

Vegetation ..................................................................................................................8 

Wetlands ....................................................................................................................9 

Wildlife .......................................................................................................................10 

Wildfire ......................................................................................................................10 

 

5. RECREATION/ENHANCEMENTS ........................................................................................11 

Park & Picnic Area ......................................................................................................11 

Preserve Identification Signage ...................................................................................11 

Trails & Trailhead ........................................................................................................12 

Interpretive Signage (Environmental Education) .........................................................13 

Utilities .......................................................................................................................13 

Perimeter ...................................................................................................................13 

Parking .......................................................................................................................14 

Implementation ..........................................................................................................14 

 

6. PLAN MANAGEMENT ........................................................................................................15 

Monitoring .................................................................................................................15 

Regulations .................................................................................................................16 

 



 

 

 

 



INTRODUCTION 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 1 | Draft 

HISTORY OF BEAR FLAT MEADOW 

The small valley that now makes up the center of Brian Head Town, once known as Bear Flat, has always 

been a focal point for activity in the Brian Head area. The marshy mountain meadow, known for its 

babbling creek and seasonal wildflowers, has an intrinsic value that is tied to its natural, scenic, and 

sentimental characteristics. 

The ski resort was opened in 1964, and the Town was not incorporated until 1975.  In the 50 years since 

the resort has been here, the vast majority of the visitors have been here specifically for skiing or other 

outdoor recreation.  Nearly all of the development in Town – cabins, condos, retail establishments, 

restaurants, hotels, and municipal infrastructure -- has been the byproduct of the outdoor recreation 

economy.  Unlike many resort towns, there was no particular dominant industry in the Town prior to the 

advent of the outdoor recreation industry. There was no mining, as was the case in the Victorian towns 

turned ski towns of Colorado or Park City. There was no ranching to speak of as there was in Jackson and 

some of the Idaho ski towns. There was no logging or gold rush as there was in the mountain resort 

towns of the Sierra Nevada range.  

What little usage of the area we are aware of prior to the advent of the ski industry is somewhat 

unclear. There is evidence that Native American tribes frequented the mountain area, possibly to escape 

the heat of the lower valleys in the summer and to pursue the wild game that is so prevalent at the 

upper elevations. When the Parowan Valley was settled by the Mormon Pioneers in 1851, they soon 

discovered the abundance of timber for building and rich mountain meadows to graze cattle and sheep 

in the summer. At some point in the early 1900’s there was a small sawmill operation in what is now 

known as the Steam Engine area. While there is evidence of a few failed homesteads in the vicinity, 

there is no history of any permanent settlement. There are scattered stories of somebody operating a 

cottage industry making cheese in the area and storing it in nearby caves.  

Bear Flat Meadow before Development (circa 1972) 

Much of the development in the area has avoided the Meadow, probably due first and foremost to the 

marshy terrain which increased the cost associated with development. Community reluctance to 

develop in the Meadow has also likely been a factor in limiting development in the Meadow.  



INTRODUCTION 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 2 | Draft 

The first real development encroachment on the Meadow came in the mid 1970’s when the ski resort 

built a parking lot in conjunction with chair 2 and the Giant Steps Lodge. The now 200,000 thousand 

square foot parking area protrudes from the east side, extending from the bottom of the ski hill about 

three quarters of the way through the Meadow, leaving a small strip of grassy marsh between the 

parking lot and the highway. This parking lot covers nearly 10% of the original Meadow. 

Other developments over the years have included the following: 

 Brianwood Condominiums (7% of the Meadow) 

 Chair 1 Parking and Skier Bridge (2%) 

 ATV Trail along Village Way (2%) 

 Park pavilion and playground (1%) 

 Bear Flat Well & Pump House (1%) 

The most significant 

development, though, was the 

construction of Bristlecone Pond 

in 2013.  In an effort to facilitate 

a change order for water rights 

the Town had acquired 

downstream and intended to 

employ up the mountain for 

municipal use, the Town Council 

agreed to build a retention pond 

in order to make the Parowan 

Reservoir Company whole and 

avoid lawsuit.  The “Pond” was to 

be in lieu of building a well or 

other wet water source down in 

the valley to make the farmers 

whole.  The project would be 

cheaper (due to available grant 

funding) and would be useful to 

the Town as a recreational 

feature in addition to resolving 

the water rights issues. However, 

there was much controversy 

among residents about 

encroaching on the Meadow, which had loosely been given a protected status in the Town’s General 

Plan. A split Town Council favored the plan, and a ballot item for general obligation bonds to fund the 

project was approved by voters. The project moved forward, and the pond and surrounding park now 

cover 31% of the original Meadow.  



INTRODUCTION 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 3 | Draft 

At present, only about 23 acres of the original 50 acre Meadow remain undeveloped (46%).   

In 2014, a community conversation began to emerge regarding the potential for permanent 

preservation of the largest remaining contiguous area of the Meadow.  Public hearings and an 

unscientific survey revealed a general community sentiment in favor of preservation, but there was also 

some strong concern over the idea of doing anything so permanent that it couldn’t be undone, such as a 

third party easement. This plan is an attempt to strengthen the preservation effort for the remainder of 

the Meadow without going as far as to give away long-term control of the property. 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY  

The property discussed in this document is limited to the largest remaining contiguous portion of the 

original grassland running the center of Bear Flat.  It is an approximately nine acre piece of publicly 

owned land, bounded on the north by Steam Engine Drive, on the east and south by Village Way, and on 

the north by Highway 143.  The Town’s ATV trail runs along the east edge of the property adjacent to 

Village Way, and the Bear Flat Well and Pump Station sit in the northeast corner. 

 

NEED FOR A MEADOW PRESERVE 

For decades Town residents and businesses have discussed the potential for preserving the Meadow 

due to its intrinsic and scenic value.  The penchant for preservation has certainly fluctuated over the 

years, and private ownership of property in the Meadow has allowed for small encroachments here and 

there. However, it seems that the majority over the years has generally supported the preservation of 

the Meadow. The Town’s General Plan, adopted in 2010, includes a goal to:  

Ensure that the Meadow is preserved as a central focal point of the community and that 

improvements are only made that preserve or improve the natural habitat, encourage education 

and interaction between the public and the Meadow, and expand the Meadow’s influence as a 

community resource. Development of private property within and along the periphery of the 

Meadow shall not detract from its beauty. 

Despite this emphasis in the Town’s General Plan, though, the Town Council and voters in the 

community elected to move forward with the development of Bristlecone Pond just a few short years 

later, which dug up nearly a third of the Meadow and left a good portion of it under water. While the 



INTRODUCTION 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 4 | Draft 

Town and its visitors very much enjoy the new recreational feature, this violation of the Town’s General 

Plan rightly called into question its strength in preserving what remains of the Meadow. 

In 2015, the Town took an informal survey 

of property owners in Brian Head.  An 

apparent majority of property owners 

(74%) support some form of preservation 

of the Meadow.  However, only 44% 

supported permanent preservation in the 

form of a third party conservation 

easement. The Town Council mirrored this 

sentiment, unanimously supporting 

preservation, but split on a third party 

conservation easement. The Council 

ultimately called for a committee to put together a preservation plan which could either be used as a 

foundation for a third-party easement or as a stand-alone preservation effort.  

This document is the result of the Meadow Committee’s efforts. The primary focus is to create a clearly 

identifiable “Meadow Preserve” in order to affirm in the public view the protected status of the area.  It 

is hoped that doing so will create future political encumbrances to the sale and development of the land 

which would be stronger than words typed in a General Plan that nobody reads. Negative public 

perception around development of a “Preserve” would be a stronger disincentive than what currently 

exists, while the development rights remain in the Town’s hands just in case some unforeseen 

overwhelming need arises requiring development on the property. 

 

21%

30%

44%

5%

Public Support for Meadow Preservation

Meadow used for
commercial development

Meadow preserved for
now

Meadow preserved as is
permanently

No opinion



VISION & GOALS 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 5 | Draft 

MEADOW VISION 

The Town intends to create a natural park which preserves and exhibits the native flora, fauna, and 

wildlife of the Bear Flat Meadow and the Brian Head area.  The preserve is intended to be well utilized 

by the public in a limited manner that is sensitive to preservation efforts while still encouraging public 

usage and education.  

 

PLAN GOALS 

1. Encourage long-term preservation of the Meadow by reshaping the public view of the property 

as a recognizable nature preserve 

2. Educate visitors about the unique and interesting aspects of the area’s mountain meadows 

3. Add to the variety of recreational opportunities available to Brian Head guests 

 

South Meadow before Bristlecone Pond 

 

 



MASTER PLAN OVERVIEW 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 6 | Draft 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Plan Elements: 

A – Meadow Preserve Signage 

B – Parking  

C – Picnic Area & Trailhead Kiosk 

D – Boardwalk Trail & Interpretive Signage 

E – South Entrance Steps & Signage 

F – Riparian Boardwalk Loops & Interpretive Signage 

GF – Snowmobile Trail 

 

 

A

B
C

D

E

F
G



MASTER PLAN OVERVIEW 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 7 | Draft 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A

B
C

D

E

F
G



RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 8 | Draft 

VEGETATION 

The Town should prepare a Natural Resources Inventory (NRI) as soon as funding may be allocated for 

the project. The NRI should provide a description of the vegetation communities, noxious weeds, and 

rare and sensitive plants in Bear Flat Meadow and surrounding areas. The Town will make all efforts 

possible to mitigate noxious weeds and invasive species in the Meadow. The NRI will map the general 

vegetation communities within the area and identify the dominant species and non-native species.  

The priority for native vegetation management in the Bear Flat Meadow is to preserve biological 

diversity and to improve the condition of native plant communities, while balancing the recreational 

components of the area. Allowing and encouraging the function of natural processes and simulated 

natural processes, integrated weed management, and other restoration activities can accomplish these 

priorities. The coordination of land stewardship with surrounding landowners is an important 

component of the program.  

Noxious Weeds 

Noxious weeds threaten native plant communities and species diversity by displacing desirable native 

species. Alien plants that are highly invasive do not have natural pathogens and predators to keep their 

populations under control. The Town will actively work to prevent and mitigate the impact of noxious 

weeds in the Bear Flat Meadow Preserve. The Town will implement integrated weed management 

within two years of the adoption of this Master Plan in order to mitigate noxious weeds. 

Integrated Weed Management 

The Town will utilize Integrated Weed Management (IWM) techniques to control noxious and invasive 

species. When used together, these techniques are the least harmful and most beneficial methods for 

weed control. 

 

The Town will accomplish noxious weed control in the Meadow through several applications and focus 

on long-term prevention or suppression of undesirable species while reducing the impact that control 

techniques may have on the environment, human health, and non-target plants and animals. 

Weed management is potentially the most serious management issue the Town will face with the Bear 

Flat Meadow. Noxious weed management should be integrated into every aspect of land management. 

Revegetation 

The major purposes of revegetation are: 1) to control sediment erosion and transport, 2) enhance 

habitat, and 3) provide viable habitats for species that are in decline. Vegetation is critical in stabilizing 

soil materials. The roots of vegetative material bind soil on hillsides and the leaves intercept rainfall, 

thereby cushioning the raindrop impact on the soil and reducing the amount of water available for 

overland flow. Establishing an appropriate vegetative community in a disturbed area creates habitat for 



RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 9 | Draft 

species that may not have been present prior to restoration, either because exotic and/or opportunistic 

species crowded them out or because the physical conditions of the site were different enough from the 

natural conditions to preclude successful habitation. 

Before revegetation efforts are initiated in the Bear Flat Meadow, it is important to ensure that the 

physical characteristics of the landscape (e.g., slope, aspect, soil texture, organic material content, and 

depth of water table) are appropriate for the site location and will serve as a suitable planting medium 

for the desired vegetative community. It is worth putting money and effort into site preparation as it will 

pay off in revegetation success. Expert advice should be sought to identify the complexity of re-

establishing native plants, particularly native wildflowers. An expert may help address soil preparation 

(including amendments such as fertilizer, mulch, and lime), seed mix choices, transplanting, wildflower 

seeding, and monitoring. 

Soils 

Soils are a determining factor in selecting and planting vegetation and constructing trails, and they are 

the medium that will be manipulated for planting, storing and transmitting water, and supporting 

diverse plant communities. Good soil conditions exist when water, air, plant roots and microorganisms 

are able to move freely through and within the root zone of the soil. Due to the fact that soil 

characteristics vary across any landscape, it is important to understand the soil characteristics of the 

property. Prior to revegetation of upland areas, a thorough soil analysis should be conducted. 

WETLANDS/RIPARIAN AREAS 

Wetlands are often thought of as marshy or swampy areas while riparian areas are the narrow, thickly 

vegetated strips along streams and the edges of ponded water, typified by plants and trees that require 

higher amounts of soil moisture than exists in surrounding uplands. Riparian areas are a type of wetland, 

which is generally defined by the presence of hydric soils, hydrophytic (“water-loving”) plants, and semi-

annual inundation by surface water. In addition to serving as habitat for many species of plants and 

wildlife, wetland and riparian areas filter runoff and protect the water quality of reservoirs and creeks. A 

major feature of the Bear Flat Meadow is the riparian area on the west edge of the Meadow that runs 

along either side of Parowan Creek. 

Management of riparian areas should focus on protecting undeveloped areas, preventing further 

degradation and, where possible, restoring natural systems to a functional condition. Future trails 

should avoid significant wetlands, and passive recreational use should be compatible with wetland and 

riparian corridor preservation. The critical factor in assessing wetland and riparian areas is their 

condition. Opportunities to restore or enhance degraded wetland and riparian areas within Bear Flat 

Meadow should be explored. Knowledge of the amount of water available to plants will be critical in any 

future efforts to restore native vegetation in the Meadow. The amount of water combined with soil 

texture and organic material ultimately determines moisture availability. Sources of water are rainfall, 

surface water runoff from adjacent lands, and the water table. 

WILDLIFE 



RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 10 | Draft 

Given its small size and the surrounding 

development, Bear Flat Meadow is not 

considered a critical area for wildlife. It is 

known to be a habitat for yellow-bellied 

marmot and various species of birds and 

rodents. It is also an area frequented by 

mule deer and red fox. Prior to human 

settlement in Brian Head, black bears 

would occasionally be seen in the 

Meadow. It is important to note that 

management actions, such as restoration 

and domestic animal control, will support 

and may even increase the overall variety and number of wildlife species in the Meadow. 

Intentional or inadvertent feeding of commensal species is often the major cause of wildlife conflicts. 

Feeding red foxes also can inadvertently attract other large predators, such as coyote. Because of its 

adaptability, the coyote is presently one of the few mammals whose range is increasing despite 

increasing human impacts on its habitat. Over time, coyote or other predators, such as bears and 

mountain lions, become less wary and more emboldened. They are more apt to attack pets and people, 

and when that happens, the bears or mountain lions usually are destroyed to ensure public safety. 

WILDFIRE 

Given the size and location of the Bear Flat Meadow Preserve, most wildland fire prevention work will 

be done outside of the Meadow area. Any wildfire mitigation should be done in accordance with existing 

wildfire mitigation plans set forth by the Brian Head Town Public Safety Department. 

However due to the risk associated with a large area of dry grasses, measures should be taken to 

prevent a wildland fire from starting in the Meadow itself. While Bear Flat Meadow is designated non-

motorized recreation, precautions need to be taken by maintenance and trail crews when driving and 

parking on or near dry grasses. Caution must also be exercised by maintenance crews operating gas 

power equipment such as brush cutters during periods of high fire danger. People recreating in the 

Meadow must be reminded not to have any open flames or use fireworks during times of high fire 

danger.  

 



RECREATION & ENHANCEMENTS 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 11 | Draft 

In order to facilitate a public awareness of the Meadow Preserve, certain recreational improvements 

should be incorporated to enhance the recreational user experience.  Currently, very few visitors 

venture into the Meadow area as it’s difficult to traverse the marshy terrain, thus limiting its value to 

scenic only. The Town hopes to alter this by adding recreational features that integrate the area into our 

visitors’ outdoor recreation experience.  

PARK & PICNIC AREA 

A one-third acre area surrounding the Bear Flat Well and Pumphouse has already been disturbed and 

developed. It is unlikely that this area will be easily restored to its natural state. Thus, it’s recommended 

that the most impactful enhancements be concentrated within this area.  

The disturbed area around the Bear Flat Pumphouse should be landscaped and improved into a small 

picnic area. Elements of the picnic area may include: 

 Tread enhancements (covering 

the exposed dirt with sod, bark, or 

another groundcover) 

 Shrubbery or hedges to delineate 

between the picnic area and the 

Preserve 

 A few non-invasive trees 

 Wood picnic tables 

 Rustic log seating 

 Water spigots and drinking 

fountains 

 Restrooms incorporated into the 

existing pumphouse 

 Multi-paneled, sheltered information kiosk (such as the one pictured here) 

The Town Council should set aside park improvement funding as it becomes available for these 

enhancements prior to or concurrent with proceeding with other recreational improvements identified 

in this plan. Operating expense budgets should be put in place to allow sufficient maintenance of the 

park and picnic area. 

PRESERVE IDENTIFICATION SIGNAGE 

Clear, attractive identification signage should be placed in the northwest and 

southeast corners of the Preserve. These should be free-standing monument 

signs, and should be constructed of very sturdy and attractive material. The idea 

is to draw public attention to the fact that this is not just a park or piece of 

undeveloped land; it is a nature preserve. The northeast corner sign will be the 

most important, and should be large enough to easily read when passing in a 



RECREATION & ENHANCEMENTS 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 12 | Draft 

vehicle. The southeast corner sign should be attractive but more geared toward pedestrian traffic. The 

southeast sign may be in conjunction with an entrance to the Preserve. 

TRAILS & TRAILHEAD 

It is important to invite the 

recreational user to interact with 

the Meadow, which has been 

historically difficult due to the wet 

and marshy conditions. If the Town 

is to improve the recreational 

experience in the Meadow, a small 

trail system must be put in place in 

the Meadow.  

However, in order to avoid 

dewatering some of the areas for 

trails, the Town should consider 

raised boardwalk trails (such as 

those pictured here) that provide 

both a unique and interesting user experience while having a low impact on native plants and wildlife. 

These trails would be more visible and attractive to area visitors, inviting them to come explore. 

Simultaneously, they communicate to the recreational user the importance of remaining sensitive to the 

delicate plant life. Such trail systems are commonly used in marshy or sandy areas with fragile 

ecosystems because the relatively unusual and fun experience of walking on a boardwalk encourages 

users to stay on the trail. While the trail is raised to protect the Meadow, it should remain as low-profile 

as possible to avoid detracting from the aesthetic value of the area. 

The expense to construct and maintain such a trail far outweighs the cost of a traditional dirt trail. But 

given the conditions and the goal to publicly drive home the message that this area is protected, this 

may be one of the most important steps to realizing this plan. The Town should explore the potential for 

grant funding to bring this aspect of the project about. Also, the Town may consider low-maintenance 

materials (such as Trex) to mitigate ongoing maintenance costs. 

Construction of a trails system should be conducted in a manner that does not result in significant 

disturbance to the Meadow. Heavy equipment should be avoided in the construction of the trail. Every 

effort should be made to find a contractor who can guarantee minimal impact. If the Town cannot find a 

way to construct the trail without causing significant damage to the Meadow, the trail should not be 

built. 

The placement of the trails is loosely suggested in the Master Plan Overview. Positioning should be 

finalized at a later point, but efforts should be made to ensure that trails in the Meadow have ingress 

and egress points that are at least somewhat aligned with existing trails and pedestrian walkways 

outside the Meadow, such as those that may someday be part of a Village Core development. 



RECREATION & ENHANCEMENTS 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 13 | Draft 

INTERPRETIVE SIGNAGE (ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION) 

The recreational user experience may be further enhanced through special signage interspersed along 

the trail system designed to help the user interpret natural, cultural, and historic features both in the 

Bear Flat Meadow as well as in the Brian Head area in general. Interpretation tells a story and brings 

meaning and interest to a subject for the enjoyment of the visitor. It does not just provide facts. The 

mounted signs may tell stories of the area, describe preservation efforts, or otherwise illuminate to the 

recreational user the significance of the area with which they are interacting.  

Interpretive signs may be incorporated into 

a boardwalk trail system through bulb-outs 

(as depicted in the photo here). The signs 

should be based on Tilden’s interpretive 

principles. These principles state that 

interpretation must: 

 Catch the attention or arouse the curiosity of the audience 

 Relate the message to the everyday life of the audience 

 Reveal the essence of the subject through a unique viewpoint 

 Address the whole by showing logical significance of an object to a higher level concept or story 

line 

 Strive for message unity by use of a sufficient but varied repetition of cues to create and 

accentuate a particular mood, theme, aura, or atmosphere 

UTILITIES 

Overhead utilities run within the Utah Department of Transportation right-of-way on the west side of 

the Meadow along Highway 143. This negatively impacts the aesthetic and intrinsic value of the 

Meadow and detracts from the preservation message that is being instilled in the public by each of the 

other proposed enhancements in this plan.  

The Town should do all in its power to work with UDOT, Rocky Mountain Power, and any other utility 

companies involved to move toward relocating utilities to the west side of Highway 143, to the degree 

that this may be done without adversely impacting vegetation and wildlife in the Meadow.  

PERIMETER 

The Town may look to construct a “zig zag” 

fence along the boundary of the Meadow 

approximating the style of ranching fence 

that was once found in the Meadow. This 

may be difficult to construct on the west 

edge of the Meadow due to the dropoff 

between the UDOT right-of-way and the 



RECREATION & ENHANCEMENTS 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 14 | Draft 

creek. Alternatively the Town may build smaller stretches of fence for decorative purposes, perhaps 

incorporated into Preserve identification signage.  

PARKING 

It is not anticipated that more than three or four parking spaces will be required to accommodate 

visitors. The Town should look to construct a small number of end-to-end parking spaces in the shoulder 

along Village Way just north of the entrance to the pumphouse. If future utilization of the Preserve 

requires additional parking, end-to-end parking should be redesigned to angle parking in order to create 

more spaces. No portion of the Meadow should be encroached to create parking. 

IMPLEMENTATION 

Funding 

In addition to public funding deemed appropriate by the Town Council, the Town will seek out 

alternative methods to supplement project funding. These methods may include, but are not limited to, 

1) a donation box adjacent to the information kiosk, 2) events (such as a Meadow Preservation Day), 3) 

in-kind donations from local residents and businesses, and 4) volunteer services.  

Timing 

As soon as possible: Picnic Area & Park, Parking, Identification Signage, Relocation of Utilities 

Coordinated with Village Core Development: Boardwalk Trails, Interpretive Signage, Zig-Zag Fence 

 

 



PLAN MANAGEMENT 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 15 | Draft 

MONITORING 

Resource monitoring is performed to determine how well management objectives and goals are being 

met. Monitoring becomes a key element in order to measure success and provides a feedback 

mechanism for decision making that keeps the plan active and adaptive. Monitoring provides 

information on what changes are occurring within the Bear Flat Meadow Preserve. Some resources may 

be adversely affected resulting in a change in management. Other resources may improve as a result of 

management activities. Monitoring (e.g., visitor use patterns, user conflicts, etc.) should also influence 

access and recreation management. Techniques for monitoring the overall landscape include photo 

monitoring, vegetation and landscape mapping, and wildlife and field surveys. 

 Vegetation Monitoring 

o Photos and mapping of known infestations should be updated every three years and 

used annually in field reviews to track the success of control efforts. 

o Recreational trails and trail margins should be surveyed annually for weed infestations. 

o Areas to be revegetated or restored. 

 Wildlife Monitoring 

o Conduct routine surveys to document wildlife populations and occurrences. 

o Monitor changes in the condition of important habitat areas and their use by wildlife. 

o Conduct a review of regulatory signage. 

o Work with DWR to continue mapping wildlife habitats and migration corridors. 

 Environmental Education and Outreach Monitoring 

o Communicate annually with other agencies (such as the Dixie National Forest and Cedar 

Breaks National Monument) to coordinate education and outreach opportunities of 

mutual interest. 

o Explore the use of informal visitor surveys to quantify visitor familiarity with and 

effectiveness of environmental education and interpretive outreach efforts prior to and 

after visitation. 

 Visitor Use, Recreation, Trails, and Signage 

o Monitor service levels and visitor use patterns at points of access to identify changing 

needs. Quantifying changes in visitor use can be carried out through annual visitor 

surveys. 

o Monitor visitor use and evaluate recreational impacts on wildlife, vegetation, and 

wetlands. 

 

 

 

 

 



PLAN MANAGEMENT 

Bear Flat Meadow Master Plan | 16 | Draft 

REGULATIONS 

1. No motorized vehicles will be allowed on trails with the exception of vehicles for maintenance

use. This prohibition includes ATVs and UTVs, motorcycles, gas-powered skateboards, and four-

wheel drive vehicles. Snowmobiles are permitted for winter access.

2. Use or discharge of fireworks, even legal fireworks, is not permitted in the Meadow.

3. Camping in the Meadow is strictly prohibited.

4. Plants, animals or other natural features are not to be disturbed, removed, or destroyed unless

authorized by the Town.

5. Disposing, burying, and burning trash in the Meadow is prohibited. Trash includes yard waste

such as grass clippings and gardening and pruning remnants.

6. Discharging of firearms and hunting is prohibited.

7. Open Space hours are dawn to dusk.

8. Town Council has the ultimate authority of use in the Bear Flat Meadow. Any use which may

disrupt reasonable normal use of the area by others requires Town Council permission. (events,

volunteer days)

9. Any rerouting, relocation or construction of new trails and other facilities is prohibited without

prior permission from Town Council.

10. Domestic animals are required to remain on leash in the Meadow.

11. Wildlife watching can be fun and is encouraged, but it is illegal to capture, harass, or disturb

wildlife, including any nesting and denning site within the Meadow. Feeding of wildlife is

prohibited.



Town Council
Staff Report

Subject: Outdoor Recreation Grant Discussion
Author: Bret Howser, Town Mgr
Department: Administration
Date: 10-11-16
Type of Item: Discussion

SUMMARY: 

Council will discuss the Town’s interest level in proceeding with Phase 1 of the Town 
Trail Paving project which staff anticipates will be funded in large part by the state
Outdoor Recreation Grant as well as UDOT funding.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: 

The Council adopted the Trails Master Plan in 2015 which anticipates and recommends
paving the Town Trail. Council held preliminary discussion on the preferred route for
Phase 1 of a paved Town Trail in September 2016, and directed staff in October 2016
to pursue the Outdoor Recreation Grant which would partially fund Phase I of the
project. The Town’s strategic plan lists improvement of trails and facilitating pedestrian 
mobility as two of the Town Council’s ten goals.

BACKGROUND: 

Seeing an opportunity to expedite the paving of the Town Trail, staff pursued funding
assistance for the project. Staff applied for $75,000 from the Outdoor Recreation Grant,
and was recently notified that $50,000 was awarded to the Town for that purpose.

Staff has also been in talks with UDOT to assess their interest in using Alternative
Transportation Contingency Funding to help complete the project. Shane Williamson,
the Town Public Works Director, has been working with UDOT to get our project
included for summer 2017. Staff believes we will receive UDOT funding for the project,
although the timing and amount are unclear at this point. We hope to know for sure by
February 2017.

ANALYSIS:  

A letter of grant award from the Utah Office of Outdoor Recreation is attached. Council
should consider the award and accept the grant by motion if they so choose.

The following table presents anticipated costs of Phase I: The Town Sidewalk. The
purpose of this phase would be to create a paved pedestrian walkway connecting the
hotels on Hunter Ridge Drive to Navajo and Giant Steps Ski Areas which could be



plowed in the winter. This would give guests a safe alternative mode of transportation 
through the major travel corridor in addition to car travel, shuttle service and the skier 
interconnect. Currently, many people do walk this stretch in the winter, but since there is 
no plowable sidewalk they walk in the roadway. If well designed, the walkway could also 
serve as a valuable recreational feature. 

ITEM 

NO.

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNITS UNIT PRICE

Dollars & Cents

ITEM PRICE

Dollars & Cents

1 Mobilization @ 6% 1 L.S. $22,738.00 $22,738.00

2 Clearing & Grubbing 179,104 S.F. $0.08 $14,328.32

3 Grading & Excavation Cut/Fill (16' Wide 

Average 2' Depth)

13,267 C.Y. $2.85 $37,810.95

4 Finish Grading 111,940 S.F. $0.20 $22,388.00

5 3" Asphalt (10' Wide) 111,940 S.F. $1.90 $212,686.00

6 6" Roadbase (10' Wide + Shoulder) 134,328 S.F. $0.60 $80,596.80

7 Pavement Marking (Single 4" Yellow Stripe) 11,194 L.F. $0.25 $2,798.50

8 Signs 26 EA. $225.00 $5,850.00

9 Furnish & Install 18" Dia. CMP Culvert (5 

Culverts with End Sections)

100 L.F. $25.00 $2,500.00

$401,696.57

40169.66

48203.59

$490,069.82

ITEM 

NO.

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNITS UNIT PRICE

Dollars & Cents

ITEM PRICE

Dollars & Cents

1 Mobilization @ 6% 1 L.S. $11,047.00 $11,047.00

2 Clearing & Grubbing 87,018 S.F. $0.08 $6,961.40

3 Grading & Excavation Cut/Fill (16' Wide 

Average 2' Depth)

6,446 C.Y. $2.85 $18,370.41

4 Finish Grading 54,386 S.F. $0.20 $10,877.19

5 3" Asphalt (10' Wide) 54,386 S.F. $1.90 $103,333.29

6 6" Roadbase (10' Wide + Shoulder) 65,263 S.F. $0.60 $39,157.88

7 Pavement Marking (Single 4" Yellow Stripe) 5,439 L.F. $0.25 $1,359.65

8 Signs 13 EA. $225.00 $2,842.22

9 Furnish & Install 18" Dia. CMP Culvert (5 

Culverts with End Sections)

49 L.F. $25.00 $1,214.62

$195,163.66

$19,516.37

$23,419.64

$238,099.67

Subtotal

10% Contingency

12% Engineering & Construction Management

TOTAL

Entire 2.12 Miles of the Trail

Phase 1 - 1.03 miles from Hotels to Village Core

Subtotal

10% Contingency

TOTAL

12% Engineering & Construction Management

Town Trail

Brian Head, Utah

PRELIMINARY ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

 
 

These estimates were done under the assumption that the trail would be entirely on the 
west side of Hwy 143. However with the Council’s direction to cross the trail at Town 
Hall and utilize existing pavement along Village Way, it is probable the cost would be 
less than these estimates.  
 
If Council accepts the grant and commits to this project, it is possible that the Town 
would need to fund up to $150,000 in cash and/or manpower. However, staff believes it 
is likely that the Town could receive $100,000 from UDOT in reimbursable assistance 
for the project, leaving the Town to come up with only the $50,000 match for the 
Outdoor Recreation Grant. It is also probable that the Town could complete much of the 
work, particularly the work in the shoulder of local roads, with in-house labor and 
equipment, matching the grant funds in-kind. So there may well be a scenario in which 
the Town spends very little incremental cash on the project.  
 
 

Staff believes that this project would be a tremendous benefit to the community on 
many fronts: safety, recreational opportunities, transportation alternatives, infrastructure 
to help attract a Village Core development, etc. As such, staff highly recommends fully 
committing to the project, even if it means being willing to spend upwards of $150,000 
on it. There is in excess of $300,000 existing in the RDA Fund which could be used for 
the project. Currently, the only project competing for those funds would be Bristlecone 
Pond improvements, and those are largely completed.  
 



Staff will, of course, continue to pursue UDOT funding to offset or eliminate cash 
obligations from the Town to complete the project, and based on our conversations with 
UDOT we believe there is a good chance of accomplishing this. 
 
Once the Council accepts the grant, staff recommends the following process for 
progressing toward construction of Phase I: 

1. Establish Council-preferred routing (January - Strategic Planning Retreat) 
2. Finalize UDOT Funding (Feb) 

a. Adjust routing based on UDOT input 
3. Hold well-advertised public hearings on the Phase I plan (March) 

a. Adjust plan accordingly 
4. Include in 2018 Budget and adjust 2017 for engineering costs (April) 
5. Engineering and RFP (May-June) 
6. Construction (summer 2017) 

 
DEPARTMENT REVIEW:   

Administration & Public Works 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:   

Accepting the Outdoor Recreation Grant could obligate the Town to spend up to 
$150,000 to complete the project. However, staff will pursue UDOT funding to cover the 
balance. 
 
BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:   

The Trails Committee already recommended the Trails Master Plan which supports 
paving the Town Trail. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    

Staff recommends that Council accept the Outdoor Recreation Grant of $50,000 for 
Phase I of the paved Town Trail. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:   

I move to accept the matching grant award of $50,000 from the Utah Office of Outdoor 
Recreation for Phase I of the paved Town Trail. 





Town Council 
Staff Report 

Subject:  2017 Town Council Meeting Schedule Approval 
Author:   Nancy Leigh, Town Clerk 
Department:   Administration 
Date:   December 13, 2016 
Type of Item:  Legislative  

SUMMARY: 
The Council will approve their meeting schedule for 2017 as required by state law.  

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  
Council approved the meeting schedule for 2016.  

BACKGROUND:  
As per state law, the legislative body is required to formally approve their meeting 
schedule annually.  Once the meeting schedule is approved, it is posted in the 
newspaper and the Utah State Meeting Website prior to December 31, 2016.   

ANALYSIS:   
Council has traditionally held its meetings the 2nd and 4th Tuesday of each month with 
the exception of December in which one meeting is scheduled.  The meetings are 
scheduled to begin at 1:00 pm. and are located at the Town Hall Council Chambers.   

According to state law, the legislative body is required to adopt an ordinance approving 
the meeting schedule.  Council adopted Ordinance No. 08-021 in 2008 in which the 
language identifies the 2nd and 4th Tuesday of each month and meetings are scheduled 
to begin at 1:00 pm and are held at the Town Hall Council Chambers and the Council 
then can approve their meeting schedule with a motion instead of adopting a new 
ordinance annually if the Council agrees to stay with the 2nd and 4th Tuesday’s at 1:00 
pm.    

Attached is a proposed meeting schedule for 2017 highlighting the 2nd and 4th 
Tuesday’s.  There are no holidays that are in conflict with Council meetings for the 2017 
year.   

DEPARTMENT REVIEW:   
Administration Department has reviewed this item.  



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:   
N/A 
 
BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:   
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:    
Council approves the proposed meeting schedule as presented.   
 
PROPOSED MOTION:   
I move to approve the 2017 Council meeting schedule as presented.   





Town Council 
Staff Report 

Subject: Cooperative Agreement with State Parks & Rec for Snowmobile 
Trail Grooming for 2016-2017 Winter Season 

Author:  Nancy Leigh, Town Clerk  
Department:  Administration 
Date:  December 13, 2016 
Type of Item: Legislative 

SUMMARY: 
The Council will consider an agreement with State Parks & Recreation for snowmobile 
trail grooming for the 2016-2017 winter season.   

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  
Council has entered into agreements with State Parks and Recreation for the 
snowmobile trail grooming for the past ten+ years for partial reimbursement of the 
town’s cost for trail grooming.  

BACKGROUND:  
The town entered into agreements with State Parks & Recreation for partial 
reimbursement on the snowmobile trail grooming for one-half of our cost with a cap of 
$2,000.   

ANALYSIS:   
The town currently grooms the “B” trail according to the Cedar Mountain Snowmobile 
Complex which is also known as the town snowmobile trail.    

Cedar Mountain  
Snowmobile Complex 



By entering into the agreement with State Parks & Recreation, the town is eligible to be 
reimbursed one-half of our grooming costs up to a maximum of $2,000.  This agreement 
is beneficial to the town in every aspect.   
 
DEPARTMENT REVIEW:   
The Administration department has reviewed this item.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:   
For the 2015-2016 winter season the town’s cost for snowmobile trail grooming came to 
a total of $1,899 in which the town received $949.50 in reimbursement from the state.   
 
BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:   
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:    
Recommend the Council enter into the agreement with Utah State Parks and 
Recreation for the grooming of the snowmobile trails.   
 
PROPOSED MOTION:   
I move to approve the cooperative agreement with Utah State Parks and Recreation for 
the grooming of the snowmobiles trails in the Brian Head area as proposed and 
authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement.   



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
 
 between  
 
 THE STATE OF UTAH 
  DIVISION OF STATE PARKS AND RECREATION  

 
and 

 
BRIAN HEAD TOWN 

 
for 

 
GROOMING OF SNOWMOBILE TRAILS IN THE BRIAN HEAD AREA 

 
 

This AGREEMENT made and entered into this _____ day of _________, 2016, by and between 
Utah Division of State Parks and Recreation, known as the STATE, and Brian Head Town, known 
as the TOWN. 
 
The authorities under which the parties enter into this agreement are provisions found in Title 41, 
Chapter 22, Utah Code Annotated 1953. 
 
WHEREAS, the parties to this agreement desire to share joint cooperation in the grooming of 
snowmobile trails in the vicinity of Brain Head Town.  The grooming of snowmobile trails is critical 
to the mission of both parties, which is to promote safety and responsible snowmobile riding among 
residents and visitors, to encourage economic development of the area, and to protect and conserve 
the natural resources of the State of Utah.   
 
Since neither party has the resources available, individually, to accomplish this important mission, 
and since both parties believe that this partnership is the best alternative to provide the services 
needed, the parties desire to enter into this cooperative agreement. In consideration of the above 
premise, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, the TOWN agrees to: 
 

1. Groom those sections of trails on the Utah Snowmobiling Cedar Mountain Complex map as 
agreed to in the annual operating plan utilizing grooming equipment owned by, or under the 
control of, the TOWN. 

 
2. Obtain all necessary permits, clearances, permissions, and rights from public or private 

entities necessary to groom the trails. 
 

3. Provide any and all insurance as required by law covering agents, employees or volunteers 
involved in the trail grooming operation. 

 
4. Bill the STATE prior to May 1, annually, for the STATE’s share of costs as indicated in this 

agreement.  Billing shall be accompanied by documentation detailing the following:  total 



miles groomed, total hours groomed, and total fuel costs incurred. Billing and 
documentation shall be sent to:  

 
                                         Utah Division of Parks and Recreation 
                                        Attention: Chris Haller  
                                        1594 West North Temple, Suite 116 
                                               Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-6001 
 

5. Indemnify, save harmless and release the STATE and all its officers, agents, volunteers, and 
employees from and against any and all loss, damages, injury, liability, suits and proceedings 
arising out of the performance of this contract which are caused primarily by the negligence 
of TOWN’S officers, agents, volunteers, or employees, but not for claims arising from the 
STATE’s primary negligence. 

 
WHEREAS, the STATE agrees to: 
 

1.  Reimburse the TOWN for 50% of costs incurred in grooming the trails, up to an annual 
maximum of $2,000 (Two Thousand Dollars). 

 
2.  Indemnify, save harmless and release TOWN and all its officers, agents, volunteers, and 

employees from and against any and all loss, damages, injury, liability, suits, and proceedings 
arising out of the performance of this contract which are caused primarily by the negligence 
of the STATE’s officers, agents, volunteers, or employees, but not for claims arising from 
the TOWN’S primary negligence. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, it is agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows: 
 

1. Either party, in writing, may terminate this Cooperative Agreement in whole, or in part, by 
providing 30 days written notice to the other party before the date of expiration.  Neither 
party shall incur any new obligations for the terminated portion of the instrument after the 
effective date and shall cancel as many obligations as possible.  Full credit shall be allowed 
for each participant’s expenses and all non-cancelable obligations properly incurred up to 
the effective date of termination. 

 
2. This Cooperative Agreement is executed as of the date of last signature, and, unless sooner 

terminated, is effective through July 1, 2017.  It may be renewed by mutual agreement of 
both parties for up to two (2) years. 

 
3. This agreement in no way restricts the TOWN or the STATE from participating in similar 

activities with other public or private agencies, organizations and individuals. 
 

4. No part of this agreement shall entitle the parties to any share or interest in the project other 
than the right to use and enjoy the same under the existing regulations of the STATE and 
the TOWN. 

 
5. Nothing herein shall be considered as obligating the TOWN or the STATE to expend, or as 

involving the STATE in any contract or other obligations for the future payment of money 
in excess of funding approved and made available for payment under this instrument and 



  

modifications thereto. 
 

6. Modification within the scope of this instrument shall be made by mutual consent of the 
parties, and the issuance of a written modification, signed and dated by both parties, prior to 
any changes being performed.  Neither the STATE nor TOWN is obligated to fund any 
changes not properly approved in advance. 

 
7. The STATE and TOWN have legal authority to enter into this Cooperative Agreement, and 

the institutional managerial and financial capability to ensure proper planning, management, 
and completion of the project. 

 
8. Official Contacts for both parties are: 

 
Chris Haller     Nancy Leigh 
Utah Division of Parks and Recreation Brian Head Town 
1594 West North Temple   P.O. Box 190068 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84114   Brian Head, Utah  84719 

 
9. Parties to this agreement agree to meet prior to January 15, 2017 annually to jointly draft an 
      annual operating plan.  Then annual operating plan shall become part of this agreement, and 
      shall specify the trails to be groomed by the TOWN, the frequency of grooming, applicable  
      standards of grooming, and other details as agreed to by both parties. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these presents to be executed by 
their duly authorized officers. 
 

 
BRIAN HEAD TOWN    STATE - Division of Parks & Recreation 
 
 

      
________________________________________  __________________________________ 
Honorable H.C. Deutschlander  Date  Fred Hayes                                Date 
Mayor       Director 
     

 
 


	12-13-16 TC Agenda
	P S Update 12-13-16
	PW Update 12-13-16
	FY2016 Audit
	FY2016 audit presentation Staff Report
	Town Council
	Staff Report

	2016 0630 Audit
	2016 06/30 Audit
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65



	Steam Engine 1C SAA Staff Report
	SEM Phase 1A & 1B
	Staff Report_Steam Engine Subdivision (2)
	Subject: Steam Engine Subdivision – Phases 1A & 1B
	Author:  Shane Williamson
	Date:  December 13, 2016
	SUMMARY:

	Town Council
	Staff Report

	Steam Engine Punchlist-letter
	SEM Map for Phase 1A & 1B TC Meeting 12-13-16

	Public Hearing on Capital Improvements Lists
	CDBG-CIB Project List Approval
	Approval of Capital Improvements Lists
	Subject: Approval of CDBG/CIB Capital Projects Lists – 1) one year plan; and 2) two to five year plan
	Author:  Cecilia Johnson, Town Treasurer

	Community Development Block Grant (Priority Lists) - 2015 and 2016 (1)
	2017 One Year Strategy 
	2017 Five Year Strategy 
	2016 One Year Strategy 
	2016 Five Year Strategy 
	2015 One Year Strategy
	2015 Five Year Strategy  


	PH & Ord for Budget Amendment
	2016-12-13 - Staff Report (Budget Adjustment for Storm Drain Master Plan) (5)
	Subject: Public Hearing and Ordinance Amending FY 2017 Brian Head General Fund Budget
	Author:  Cecilia Johnson, Town Treasurer/ Nancy Leigh, Town Clerk
	Date:  December 13, 2016

	Ord Amending FY2016 Budget 12-2016

	Bearflat Meadow Master Plan
	Meadow Master Plan Staff Report - 12-13-16
	Res - Bearflat Meadow Master Plan

	Outdoor Recreation Grant
	Snowmobile Trail Grooming
	Snowmobile trail grooming staff report
	Subject: Cooperative Agreement with State Parks & Rec for Snowmobile Trail Grooming for 2016-2017 Winter Season
	Author:  Nancy Leigh, Town Clerk
	Date:  December 13, 2016
	SUMMARY:

	Town Council
	Staff Report

	State Parks & Rec  Grooming Contract
	DIVISION OF STATE PARKS AND RECREATION
	9. Parties to this agreement agree to meet prior to January 15, 2017 annually to jointly draft an
	annual operating plan.  Then annual operating plan shall become part of this agreement, and
	shall specify the trails to be groomed by the TOWN, the frequency of grooming, applicable
	standards of grooming, and other details as agreed to by both parties.


	2017 Meeting Schedule
	2017 Meeting Schedule staff report
	Subject:  2017 Town Council Meeting Schedule Approval
	Author:   Nancy Leigh, Town Clerk
	Date:   December 13, 2016
	SUMMARY:

	Town Council
	Staff Report

	2017 Calendar - TC Meeting




